2021 SENATE INDUSTRY, BUSINESS AND LABOR

SB 2101

2021 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Industry, Business and Labor Committee

Fort Union Room, State Capitol

SB 2101 1/6/2021

A bill relating for an Act to create and enact 6-06-14.1 relating to credit union loans

Chair Klein opened the hearing at 8:49 a.m. All members present. Senators: Klein, Larsen, Burckhard, Kreun, Marcellais, Vedaa

Discussion Topics:

- Banking within a facility
- Financial commitments of banks
- Payment for goods

Lisa Kruse, Commissioner ND Department of Financial Institutions [8:50] testified in favor of bill and submitted testimony #79.

Barry Hougen, President of Independent Community Banks of ND [9:18] testified in favor.

Rick Clayburg, President CEO of ND Bankers Association [9:25] testified in favor.

Senator Vedaa moved a DO PASS [9:27]. **Senator Burckhard** seconded the motion [9:27].

Roll Call Vote:

Senators	Vote
Senator Jerry Klein	Y
Senator Doug Larsen	Y
Senator Randy A. Burckhard	Y
Senator Curt Kreun	Y
Senator Richard Marcellais	Y
Senator Shawn Vedaa	Y

Motion passed 6-0-0

Senator Vedaa will carry the bill [9:28].

Chair Klein closed the hearing at 9:28 a.m.

Gail Stanek, Committee Clerk

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE SB 2101: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Sen. Klein, Chairman) recommends DO PASS (6 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2101 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.



MEMORANDUM

DATE:	January 6, 2021
TO:	Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee
FROM:	Lise Kruse, Commissioner
SUBJECT:	Testimony in Support of Senate Bill No. 2101

Chairman Klein and members of the Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee, thank you for the opportunity to testify in support of Senate Bill No. 2101.

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, Senate Bill No. 2102 includes amendments to Chapters 6-01, 6-03, 6-05, 6-06, and 6-08 of the North Dakota Century Code relating to financial institutions. I would like to note that prior to filing this bill, the department met with various staff and committee members of the North Dakota Bankers Association, Independent Community Banks of North Dakota, and the Dakota Credit Union Association, and had discussions with several bankers and credit union officials to review our proposed legislation.

Section 1 of the Bill would amend Subsection 3 of 6-01-01.1, eliminating the department's 20% limitation to carry over the remaining balance of the financial institutions regulatory fund to the succeeding biennium. This fund is the assessments that have been charged to the industry for the operation of the department. The department's industry assessments are set by the State Banking Board and State Credit Union Board far in advance, and since future needs can be challenging to predict, it is better fiscal management to allow the carry-over of these funds to be spent in the succeeding biennium, resulting in reduced assessments to the industry the following year. The department will not be able to spend beyond what has been appropriated.

Section 2 of the Bill provides for an amendment to 6-01-04.3, removing and replacing outdated statutory references for credit union loan limitations and violations.

Also, the amendment would increase the civil money penalty the commissioner or board can impose from \$5,000 to \$100,000 for each occurrence and from \$100 to \$1,000 per day. Recognizing that this looks like a big increase, 10 times higher per day, and 20 times higher for the maximum, the following facts must be considered: When these amounts were set in 1989, the average size of a bank was \$29.7 million versus today's

average of \$485 million. This is 16 times higher average asset size. The average size of a credit union was \$6.8 million versus today's \$193 million, which is 28 times the size. South Dakota and Montana are both at \$1,000, so our amendment would be equal to our neighboring states. Minnesota is higher at \$10,000 and also include imprisonment. The reason the department has the authority to issue civil money penalties, is to hopefully force compliance with law, and it is one more way to ensure an institution returns to a satisfactory condition without us having to take more disruptive measures such as taking possession. The amounts must be such that it can be an effective tool for a \$5 million credit union and a \$10 billion bank. Please note that this is not used often; from what our records show, it was last used in the banking division around 1990. However, it is important that we have this as an effective option if necessary.

Section 3 of the Bill is to amend 6-01-09 regarding the examination of financial institutions. The word "visit" is not as clear as an examination. It also implies "in-person," which is an outdated requirement since examinations may be conducted remotely. The timeframe of 36 months is also removed. Federal rules require that a bank is examined approximately every 18 months, and we alternate with our Federal counterparts. The reason for the work approximate is that if a bank is in good condition, the

examination may be delayed a few weeks if higher risk examinations must take precedence. The 36-month requirement has a negative consequence for our banks since the schedule is driven by federal examinations. If the federal examination is later than 18 months, the state ends up earlier than 18 months from the prior examination to comply with this statute.

This amendment also addresses credit union service organizations (CUSO). The department has authority to examine bank subsidiaries since these can impact the condition of the bank. The North Dakota Administrative Code, which outlines the CUSOs framework, gives similar authority, but it is less specific on the reporting of these examination findings and the role of the state credit union board. Since CUSOs of credit unions can impact the condition of a credit union, it makes sense to clarify this authority for these subsidiaries.

Section 4 of the Bill is to amend 6-01-17 increasing the frequency of assessments from annual to semi-annual. Since the department is a special funds agency whose income is assessments paid by the regulated industries, it is important that these assessments are calculated accurately. Changing the frequency allows for flexibility and better responsiveness to the budgetary requirements. Semi-annual is utilized by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC) for national banks, therefore this

amendment will make our banks consistent with their national chartered counterparts.

To add clarity, the language referring to trust department assets is removed. The trust assets are typically low for these bank subsidiaries since the real value is in the fiduciary assets. The 11 banks with trust powers are billed for the trust examination separately.

This amendment will also remove the language saying if the department has not examined the institution for three years, the banks do not pay a fee. This is dated language since the department is doing offsite monitoring on a regular basis and as mentioned above, this requirement has a negative consequence for the bank when the state is forced to go in earlier than the 18-month interval since the prior examination, depending on the federal schedule.

The amendment will change the language for delinquent payments from "may make an order suspending the functions" to "may seek other administrative remedies." As written, the department would have to suspend the ability of a bank to be open if their payment is delinquent. Having other options such as civil money penalties would be more consistent with other actions available to the department and would be better for the bank and its customers. The amendment will also change the penalty for non-payment

from \$5 to 1% of the outstanding assessment fee. The average asset size of a bank is \$493 million and with 8 banks with over \$1 billion in assets, \$5 a day is not an effective penalty.

Section 5 of the Bill amends Subsection 1 of section 6-03-05 updating language to equal the federal requirement for a real estate appraisal. The amount has increased from \$250,000 to \$400,000.

Section 6 of the Bill amends section 6-03-11 relating to bank mergers. This would also give the commissioner authority to approve a merger in addition to the State Banking Board. The intent is to speed up the process and remove unnecessary barriers for applications that are considered competitively neutral when sister banks merge or other straight forward applications. If a bank prefers their application to be heard by the State Banking Board, that is still an option.

Section 7 of the Bill amends section 6-03-13.3 relating to facts considered for approval for new bank branches. The requirement to consider whether other banks will be injured is highly subjective and is counter to allowing the marketplace to decide. It makes most sense to look at the community banking function and the strength of the bank. Also, an interested party filing a protest of a new branch seems to provide limited, if any, value for the State Banking Board to consider or be able to act upon.

Section 8 of the Bill amends 6-03-15.1 relating to temporary relocations. It appears an unnecessary burden to require an application for temporary relocations when a notice is sufficient. A bank may need to relocate temporarily due to repairs or remodeling. Providing notice to the commissioner is consistent with Section 1-03-04, which covers bank business days. Notice to customers would make sense since customers are most impacted.

Section 9 of the Bill amends Section 1 of section 6-03-47.2 regarding the quality of a bank's investment in corporate bonds. After the last financial crisis, regulatory agencies moved away from a strict reliance on bond ratings. The new language mirrors the OCC language for national banks. The limitation remains unchanged.

Section 10 of the Bill amends section 6-03-49.1 regarding bank investments in service corporations. In the current marketplace it appears to make more sense to also allow banks to invest in service corporations outside of North Dakota. This applies to investments only, not a general partnership with a Fintech (Financial Technology) company for example or the purchase of services. The investment would be limited to within the borders of the United States to avoid high risk jurisdictions and to ensure compliance with United States privacy rules. The investment, as with any

subsidiary, must be approved by the State Banking Board. This section was also rewritten for clarity, so it is easier to read and understand.

Section 11 of the Bill amends 6-05-15.4 regarding trust company branches. The statute was silent on branch relocations and new branches were treated the same as new charters, which is an extensive process. Again, to remove unnecessary red tape, if a trust company wants to open another branch, the authority for approval is extended to the commissioner since the commissioner is already authorized to approve bank branches throughout the United States. The time requirements were also removed. There are only time requirements in this section and in the bank sale section covered below. Although timeliness is important, it is better to have that as policy, not in law, since exceptions may be necessary for lengthy or complex applications. These applications should be thoroughly reviewed to protect the North Dakota citizen, and additional information should be requested when necessary.

The amendment also removed the "automatic approval" if an application is not acted upon. To protect citizens against bad actors, an application to provide these financial services should always be approved or denied, not be rushed to a decision of denial just to avoid automatic approval.

Section 12 of the Bill will amend section 6-06-06 regarding credit union loans. The change makes the statutory language clear that loans associated with employee benefit plans are permissible. The investment side of the plan was clearly authorized, the loan side was less clear.

The amendment is also making the other real estate owned section comparable to the bank statute and ensuring that the credit union is consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires that the value of the real estate is established when transferred, and such value is established by an appraisal, which may be done internally. The amendment also allows a credit union to apply to the commissioner to establish an LLC to hold the real estate. The amendment would also allow this protection for credit unions.

Section 13 of the Bill will amend Subsection 4 of section 6-06-08 increasing the frequency of credit union assessments from annual to semiannual. As mentioned earlier, more frequent assessments allow for a more responsive and accurate budget. As with the bank statute, allowing the department to use other remedies for non-payment rather than closing the institution would be most beneficial to all stakeholders. The fee is also changed to equal the bank amendment. Finally, this removes references to

corporate credit unions as North Dakota has not authorized state chartered corporate credit unions for some time.

Section 14 of the Bill will amend section 6-06-11 regarding the notice requirements for credit union board memberships. Rather than duplicating the credit unions reporting, if the notice has been made to the National Credit Union Association (NCUA), no additional notice to the department is necessary. The numbering was added to make it easier to read the statue.

Section 15 of the Bill will amend section 6-08-08.1 regarding the sale or purchase of banks or bank holding companies. The amendment gives the commissioner the ability to grant approval. Many of the change of control applications the department receives are members within the same family or current owners increasing their ownership percentage. In addition, when all the criteria are met so there are no reasons for denial, these applications would be acted on faster if the commissioner can grant approval. If the commissioner denies an application, the applicant can appeal to the State Banking Board. Again, as mentioned earlier, the time limitations would make more sense to be set in policy rather than law. On occasion, the application may be so complex and contain hundreds of pages. That these applications are scrutinized and acted upon with care and consideration should be the most important objective. The time constraints risk hurried decisions.

Section 16 of the Bill will create and enact section 6-06-14.1 regarding loan administration for credit unions. This section replaces 6-06-14, which is being repealed. The primary reason for this new section is to improve the structure and wording of the current requirements to make it easier for the industry to understand. Twenty-six consecutive lines of text from the 6-06-14 have been divided into four individual topics, two with further divisions. This should help to make the rule easier to read and understand for the reader. Many of the basic concepts remain from the original rule including the structure of the loan administration, duties of the credit committee or credit manager, and documentation requirements, although the language used differs somewhat to fit with the new format or current underwriting standards. Finally, the change makes the statutory language clear that loans associated with employee benefit plans are permissible and not prohibited under this section, similar to the proposed changes to 6-06-06.

Section 17 of the Bill will repeal section 6-06-14, which was replaced by 6-06-14.1

Mr. Chairman, thank you for the opportunity to provide this testimony. I would be happy to answer any questions the Committee may have.

2021 HOUSE INDUSTRY, BUSINESS AND LABOR

SB 2101

2021 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Industry, Business and Labor Committee

Room JW327C, State Capitol

SB 2101 3/17/2021

Regulatory fund, assessment of civil money penalties, appointment of receivers, supervision & examinations, assessments, real estate loans, bank mergers, bank branches, bank investments, trust branches, credit union powers, credit union board notice, sale or purchase of banking institutions or holding companies & credit union loans.

(9:00) Chairman Lefor called the hearing to order.

Representatives	Attendance	Representatives	Attendance
Chairman Lefor	Р	Rep Ostlie	Р
Vice Chairman Keiser	Р	Rep D Ruby	Р
Rep Hagert	Р	Rep Schauer	Р
Rep Kasper	A	Rep Stemen	Р
Rep Louser	Р	Rep Thomas	Р
Rep Nehring	Р	Rep Adams	Р
Rep O'Brien	Р	Rep P Anderson	Р

Discussion Topics:

- Financial Institutions regulatory oversight
- Statutory references
- DakCu professional trade association

Lise Kruse~Commissioner-ND Dept of Financial Institutions. Attachment #9659.

Kayla Pulvermacher~Dakota Credit Union Association. Attachment #9670.

Corey Krebs~Assistant Commissioner-Dept of Financial institutions. Answered questions.

Barry Haugen~President-Independent Community Banks of ND. Testified in support.

Rick Clayburgh~President & CEO - Bankers Association. Testified in support.

Chairman Lefor closes the hearing.

Rep Stemen moved to amend with an Emergency clause.

Rep Adams second.

Voice vote Motion carried.

House Industry, Business and Labor Committee SB 2101 Mar 17, 2021 Page 2

Rep Stemen moved a Do Pass as Amended.

Rep Adams second.

Representatives	Vote
Chairman Lefor	Y
Vice Chairman Keiser	Y
Rep Hagert	Y
Rep Jim Kasper	A
Rep Scott Louser	Y
Rep Nehring	Y
Rep O'Brien	Y
Rep Ostlie	Y
Rep Ruby	Y
Rep Schauer	Y
Rep Stemen	Y
Rep Thomas	Y
Rep Adams	Y
Rep P Anderson	Y

Vote roll call taken Motion carried 13-0-1 & Rep Stemen is the carrier.

(9:30) End time.

Ellen LeTang, Committee Clerk

UP 3/17/27 10f1

21.8094.01001 Title.02000

Adopted by the House Industry, Business and Labor Committee March 17, 2021

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2101

Page 1, line 10, remove "and"

Page 1, line 11, after "penalty" insert "; and to declare an emergency"

Page 18, after line 28, insert:

"SECTION 18. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

SB 2101: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Lefor, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2101 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 10, remove "and"

Page 1, line 11, after "penalty" insert "; and to declare an emergency"

Page 18, after line 28, insert:

"SECTION 18. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly

9659



MEMORANDUM

DATE:	March 17, 2021
TO:	House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
FROM:	Lise Kruse, Commissioner
SUBJECT:	Testimony in Support of Senate Bill No. 2101

Chairman Lefor and members of the House Industry, Business and Labor Committee, thank you for the opportunity to testify in support of Senate Bill No. 2101.

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, Senate Bill No. 2101 includes amendments to Chapters 6-01, 6-03, 6-05, 6-06, and 6-08 of the North Dakota Century Code relating to financial institutions. I would like to note that prior to filing this bill, the department met with various staff and committee members of the North Dakota Bankers Association, Independent Community Banks of North Dakota, and the Dakota Credit Union Association, and had discussions with several bankers and credit union officials to review our proposed legislation.

Section 1 of the Bill would amend Subsection 3 of 6-01-01.1, eliminating the department's 20% limitation to carry over the remaining balance of the financial institutions regulatory fund to the succeeding biennium. This fund is the assessments that have been charged to the industry for the operation of the department. The department's industry assessments are set by the State Banking Board and State Credit Union Board far in advance, and since future needs can be challenging to predict, it is better fiscal management to allow the carry-over of these funds to be spent in the succeeding biennium, resulting in reduced assessments to the industry the following year. The department will not be able to spend beyond what has been appropriated.

Section 2 of the Bill provides for an amendment to 6-01-04.3, removing and replacing outdated statutory references for credit union loan limitations and violations.

Also, the amendment would increase the civil money penalty the commissioner or board can impose from \$5,000 to \$100,000 for each occurrence and from \$100 to \$1,000 per day. Recognizing that this looks like a big increase, 10 times higher per day, and 20 times higher for the maximum, the following facts must be considered: When these amounts were set in 1989, the average size of a bank was \$29.7 million versus today's

average of \$493 million. This is 16 times higher average asset size. The average size of a credit union was \$6.8 million versus today's \$193 million, which is 28 times the size. South Dakota and Montana are both at \$1,000, so our amendment would be equal to our neighboring states. Minnesota is higher at \$10,000 and also include imprisonment. The reason the department has the authority to issue civil money penalties, is to hopefully force compliance with law, and it is one more way to ensure an institution returns to a satisfactory condition without us having to take more disruptive measures such as taking possession. The amounts must be such that it can be an effective tool for a \$5 million credit union and a \$10 billion bank. Please note that this is not used often; from what our records show, it was last used in the banking division around 1990. However, it is important that we have this as an effective option if necessary.

Section 3 of the Bill is to amend 6-01-09 regarding the examination of financial institutions. The word "visit" is not as clear as an examination. It also implies "in-person," which is an outdated requirement since examinations may be conducted remotely. The timeframe of 36 months is also removed. Federal rules require that a bank is examined approximately every 18 months, and we alternate with our Federal counterparts. The reason for the word "approximate" is that if a bank is in good condition, the

examination may be delayed a few weeks if higher risk examinations must take precedence. The 36-month requirement has a negative consequence for our banks since the schedule is driven by federal examinations. If the federal examination is later than 18 months, the state ends up earlier than 18 months from the prior examination to comply with this statute.

This amendment also addresses credit union service organizations (CUSO). The department has authority to examine bank subsidiaries since these can impact the condition of the bank. The North Dakota Administrative Code, which outlines the CUSOs framework, gives similar authority, but it is less specific on the reporting of these examination findings and the role of the state credit union board. Since CUSOs of credit unions can impact the condition of a credit union, it makes sense to clarify this authority for these subsidiaries.

Section 4 of the Bill is to amend 6-01-17 increasing the frequency of assessments from annual to semi-annual. Since the department is a special funds agency whose income is assessments paid by the regulated industries, it is important that these assessments are calculated accurately. Changing the frequency allows for flexibility and better responsiveness to the budgetary requirements. Semi-annual is utilized by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC) for national banks, therefore this

amendment will make our banks consistent with their national chartered counterparts.

To add clarity, the language referring to trust department assets is removed. The trust assets are typically low for these bank subsidiaries since the real value is in the fiduciary assets. The 11 banks with trust powers are billed for the trust examination separately.

This amendment will also remove the language saying if the department has not examined the institution for three years, the banks do not pay a fee. This is dated language since the department is doing offsite monitoring on a regular basis and as mentioned above, this requirement has a negative consequence for the bank when the state is forced to go in earlier than the 18-month interval since the prior examination, depending on the federal schedule.

The amendment will change the language for delinquent payments from "may make an order suspending the functions" to "may seek other administrative remedies." As written, the department would have to suspend the ability of a bank to be open if their payment is delinquent. Having other options such as civil money penalties would be more consistent with other actions available to the department and would be better for the bank and its customers. The amendment will also change the penalty for non-payment

from \$5 to 1% of the outstanding assessment fee. The average asset size of a bank is \$493 million and with 8 banks with over \$1 billion in assets, \$5 a day is not an effective penalty.

Section 5 of the Bill amends Subsection 1 of section 6-03-05 updating language to equal the federal requirement for a real estate appraisal. The amount has increased from \$250,000 to \$400,000.

Section 6 of the Bill amends section 6-03-11 relating to bank mergers. This would also give the commissioner authority to approve a merger in addition to the State Banking Board. The intent is to speed up the process and remove unnecessary barriers for applications that are considered competitively neutral when sister banks merge or other straight forward applications. If a bank prefers their application to be heard by the State Banking Board, that is still an option.

Section 7 of the Bill amends section 6-03-13.3 relating to facts considered for approval for new bank branches. The requirement to consider whether other banks will be injured is highly subjective and is counter to allowing the marketplace to decide. It makes most sense to look at the community banking function and the strength of the bank. Also, an interested party filing a protest of a new branch seems to provide limited, if any, value for the State Banking Board to consider or be able to act upon.

Section 8 of the Bill amends 6-03-15.1 relating to temporary relocations. It appears an unnecessary burden to require an application for temporary relocations when a notice is sufficient. A bank may need to relocate temporarily due to repairs or remodeling. Providing notice to the commissioner is consistent with Section 1-03-04, which covers bank business days. Notice to customers would make sense since customers are most impacted.

Section 9 of the Bill amends Section 1 of section 6-03-47.2 regarding the quality of a bank's investment in corporate bonds. After the last financial crisis, regulatory agencies moved away from a strict reliance on bond ratings. The new language mirrors the OCC language for national banks. The limitation remains unchanged.

Section 10 of the Bill amends section 6-03-49.1 regarding bank investments in service corporations. In the current marketplace it appears to make more sense to also allow banks to invest in service corporations outside of North Dakota. This applies to investments only, not a general partnership with a Fintech (Financial Technology) company for example or the purchase of services. The investment would be limited to within the borders of the United States to avoid high risk jurisdictions and to ensure compliance with United States privacy rules. The investment, as with any

subsidiary, must be approved by the State Banking Board. This section was also rewritten for clarity, so it is easier to read and understand.

Section 11 of the Bill amends 6-05-15.4 regarding trust company branches. The statute was silent on branch relocations and new branches were treated the same as new charters, which is an extensive process. Again, to remove unnecessary red tape, if a trust company wants to open another branch, the authority for approval is extended to the commissioner since the commissioner is already authorized to approve bank branches throughout the United States. The time requirements were also removed. There are only time requirements in this section and in the bank sale section covered below. Although timeliness is important, it is better to have that as policy, not in law, since exceptions may be necessary for lengthy or complex applications. These applications should be thoroughly reviewed to protect the North Dakota citizen, and additional information should be requested when necessary.

The amendment also removed the "automatic approval" if an application is not acted upon. To protect citizens against bad actors, an application to provide these financial services should always be approved or denied, not be rushed to a decision of denial just to avoid automatic approval.

Section 12 of the Bill will amend section 6-06-06 regarding credit union loans. The change makes the statutory language clear that loans associated with employee benefit plans are permissible. The investment side of the plan was clearly authorized, the loan side was less clear.

The amendment is also making the other real estate owned section comparable to the bank statute and ensuring that the credit union is consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires that the value of the real estate is established when transferred, and such value is established by an appraisal, which may be done internally. The amendment also allows a credit union to apply to the commissioner to establish an LLC to hold the real estate, which is already allowable for banks.

Section 13 of the Bill will amend Subsection 4 of section 6-06-08 increasing the frequency of credit union assessments from annual to semiannual. As mentioned earlier, more frequent assessments allow for a more responsive and accurate budget. As with the bank statute, allowing the department to use other remedies for non-payment rather than closing the institution would be most beneficial to all stakeholders. The fee is also changed to equal the bank amendment. Finally, this removes references to corporate credit unions as North Dakota has not authorized state chartered corporate credit unions for some time.

Section 14 of the Bill will amend section 6-06-11 regarding the notice requirements for credit union board memberships. Rather than duplicating the credit unions reporting, if the notice has been made to the National Credit Union Association (NCUA), no additional notice to the department is necessary. The numbering was added to make it easier to read the statue.

Section 15 of the Bill will amend section 6-08-08.1 regarding the sale or purchase of banks or bank holding companies. The amendment gives the commissioner the ability to grant approval. Many of the change of control applications the department receives are members within the same family or current owners increasing their ownership percentage. In addition, when all the criteria are met so there are no reasons for denial, these applications would be acted on faster if the commissioner can grant approval. If the commissioner denies an application, the applicant can appeal to the State Banking Board. Again, as mentioned earlier, the time limitations would make more sense to be set in policy rather than law. On occasion, the application may be so complex and contain hundreds of pages. That these applications are scrutinized and acted upon with care and consideration should be the most important objective. The time constraints risk hurried decisions.

Section 16 of the Bill will create and enact section 6-06-14.1 regarding loan administration for credit unions. This section replaces 6-06-14, which

is being repealed. The primary reason for this new section is to improve the structure and wording of the current requirements to make it easier for the industry to understand. Twenty-six consecutive lines of text from 6-06-14 have been divided into four individual topics, two with further divisions. This should help to make the rule easier to read and understand for the reader. Many of the basic concepts remain from the original rule including the structure of the loan administration, duties of the credit committee or credit manager, and documentation requirements, although the language used differs somewhat to fit with the new format or current underwriting standards. Finally, the change makes the statutory language clear that loans associated with employee benefit plans are permissible and not prohibited under this section, similar to the proposed changes to 6-06-06.

Section 17 of the Bill will repeal section 6-06-14, which was replaced by 6-06-14.1

Mr. Chairman, thank you for the opportunity to provide this testimony. I would be happy to answer any questions the Committee may have.



9670

TESTIMONY OF KAYLA PULVERMACHER TO THE HOUSE INDUSTRY, BUSINESS AND LABOR COMMITTEE ON SB 2101

March 17, 2021

Chairman Lefor:

My name is Kayla Pulvermacher, and I'm here to represent the members of Dakota Credit Union Association (DakCu). DakCu is the professional trade association serving 492,000 members in 71 credit unions with 230 branches between North Dakota and South Dakota. We support HB 2101. Additionally, we urge that an emergency clause be added to the bill.

Section 12 of the bill (page 13, beginning on line 12) includes parity language between banks and credit unions in how to handle "other real estate owned" by credit unions. This will allow for a credit union to set up an LLC in order limit its liability if something were to happen with the property, much like banks are currently allowed to do.

DakCU is asking for the emergency clause to be added because we have members that are currently looking at making such a transaction and would benefit from this change. DakCU has spoken with the Department of Financial Institutions and the department has indicated it has no opposition to adding an emergency clause.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will answer any questions you may have.

PAGE | 1

CREDIT UNIONS: ADVANCING COMMUNITIES ONE PERSON AT A TIME